
MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET 
Mayo Elementary School Project 

Property Address: 1152 East Central Avenue 

Property Name: Mayo School 
Survey No.: AA-2207 

Owner Name/Address: Anne Arundel County Board of Education. 2644 Riva Road. Annapolis MD 21401 
Year Built: 1936 1959 1963 

Description: 

The interior of the Mayo Elementary School's 1936 wing is organized around a center hall which runs south to north 
through the building. When the school opened in 1936, there was a principal's office, a classroom, an auditorium and a 
stage on the east side of the hall. Two classrooms and two smaller rooms, probably bathrooms, were located on the west 
side of the hall. Alterations such as under-size window replacements, dropped ceilings, carpeting, and floor plan changes 
have occurred, however some original materials remain, as described below. 

The hall has an original terrazzo floor, original plaster walls, and original baseboards. The baseboards are plain with 
cyma reversa base molding and quarter round shoe molding. The modern dropped ceiling has modern light fixtures. 
Modern doors lead from the hall to the rooms. The original beaded door frames remain intact, but the 1-light transoms 
above them have been filled. An alcove in the north end of the hall contains a modern water fountain. The original doors 
remain in the south end of the hall, however the entry in the north end of the hall has been completely removed. 

The former principal's office, now used for tutoring, has a carpeted floor, original plaster walls with baseboards, and an 
original plaster ceiling with modern light fixtures. An original window frame and radiator occupy the south wall. A modern 
vent is located on the east wall. 

The southeast classroom has a carpeted floor and original plaster walls with baseboards. The dropped ceiling has 
modern light fixtures. The window frames and radiators remain intact. The classroom also contains one original 
bookcase and a simple closet. The chalkboards and all other furnishings appear to be of a later date. 

The former auditorium, now the northeast classroom, has a carpeted floor, original plaster walls with baseboards, and a 
dropped ceiling with modern light fixtures. The window frames and radiators remain intact along the east wall. This room 

~is no original built-in furnishings or closets.· The stage, which formerly opened along the north wall, has been completely 
..;overed so that no visible evidence of it remains in the classroom. 

The former stage, now a closet, has two steps leading up to a wood floor. Modern shelves line the plaster walls on all 
sides. The plaster ceiling has modern light fixtures. If there were windows on the north wall of the stage, they were 
sealed at the time of the 1959 addition. One original radiator remains. The former auditorium is no longer accessible 
from the stage. 

The small room in the northwest corner of the building, possibly a former bathroom, has a terrazzo floor, original plaster 
walls with baseboards, and an original plaster ceiling with modern light fixtures. Any windows on the north wall have been 
sealed. An original radiator remains, but all other fixtures have been removed. This room currently serves as a closet. 

The northwest classroom has a carpeted floor, original plaster walls with baseboards, and an original plaster ceiling with 
modern light fixtures. Original window frames and radiators remain along the west wall. The classroom also contains an 
original built-in bookcase and a simple closet. The chalkboards and other furnishings are later. 

The southwest classroom has a modern tile floor, original plaster walls with baseboards, and a dropped ceiling with 
modern light fixtures. The original window frames and radiators remain intact. The classroom contains one original built­
in bookcase and a small closet. The chalkboards and other furnishings are later. 

The small room in the southwest corner of the building, possibly a former bathroom, has a terrazzo floor, original plaster 
walls with baseboards, and an original plaster ceiling with modern light fixtures. An original window frame and radiator 
remain along the south wall. Other fixtures have been removed. This room currently contains a kiln and pottery supplies. 

In summary, the floor materials have been replaced in all classrooms. The original plaster remains on the walls, but three 
out of four classrooms have dropped ceilings. The original radiators and window frames remain, although the original 

~<(indows do not. Aside from the three built-in bookcases, no original furnishings remain. This building does not have any 
· Jtstanding architectural detail; only the simplest materials were used. The building as originally constructed was not an 

outstanding example of an educational facility or any style of architecture. Changes made over the years have also 
compromised the building's integrity. 

KCI Technologies, Inc. 
December 1999 



CAPSULE SUMMARY SHEET 

Survey No. :--'AA-"--'---=2=2-=-07'--__________ Construction Date:_1.:...=9=3=6-'--'-'19=5=9ci.......:..19=6=3:..__ ______ _ 

Name: Mayo School 

Location: 1152 East Central Avenue. Mayo vicinity. Anne Arundel County 

Public Ownership I Present use: Education I Occupied I Condition: Good I Restricted Access 

Description: 

The Mayo School is located on the northeast corner of East Central Avenue (MD 214) and Mayo Ridge Road in the Mayo 
community of Anne Arundel County. Located on 7.27 acres of open land, the school property includes a 1936 school 
building with 1959 and 1963 additions, three modern mobile classrooms, and playgrounds and athletic fields. An earlier 
school building stands on a separate property across East Central Avenue to the west. 

The 1936 school building faces south toward Mayo Ridge Road. The 1-story, 5-bay building is constructed of brick and has 
a concrete foundation. A brick parapet wall with concrete coping surrounds the flat roof. The tall, narrow window openings 
have bridge jack arches and sills. The original windows have been replaced with modern, 1/1 double-hung windows. The 
new windows are shorter than the original openings, and the space above them has been filled. An entry portico projects 
from the south elevation. A 1959 addition extends north and east from the 1936 building. A 1963 addition extends east 
and south from the 1959 addition so that the entire complex forms a "U". 

~Significance: 

The Mayo School is a simple, utilitarian building typical of those constructed during the 1930s. The building includes 
features such as a central passage, large windows and doors, and simple, quality materials. The original design included 
flexibility measures such as an auditorium that could later be converted to a classroom. The design and expansion of the 
school reflects the transition of a historically rural agricultural community into a resort and bedroom community. Until the 
early-twentieth century, Mayo depended on tobacco, grain crops and the seafood industry. Resort communities and 
suburbanization changed the landscape and economy beginning in the 1920s. The Mayo School was constructed in 1936 
to replace an earlier rural schoolhouse and expanded in 1959 and 1963 to accommodate continued population growth. The 
Mayo School is not eligible for the National Register. The property's association with the growth of the community does not 
constitute significance. The property also is neither a distinctive work of architecture nor an outstanding example of its type. 

KCI Technologies, Inc. 
October 1999 



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM 

!"""". RESOURCE NAME: Mayo School 
SURVEY NO.: AA-2207 

CONTINUATION SHEET 

ADDRESS: 1152 East Central Ave., Mayo vicinity, Anne Arundel County 

Maryland Comprehensive Historic Preservation Plan Data Sheet 

Historic Context: 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PRESERVATION PLAN DATA 

Geographic Organization: 

Western Shore 

Chronological/Developmental Period Theme (s): 

Modern Period A.O. 1930 -Present 

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s): 

Social/Education/Cultural 

RESOURCE TYPE: 

Category (see Section 3 of survey form): 

Building 

Historic Environment (urban, suburban, village, or rural): 

Rural 

Historic Function(s) and Use(s): 

Education 

Known Design Source (write none if unknown): 
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Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties 

(' 

1. Name (indicate preferred name) 

historic Mayo School (Preferred) 

and/or common Mayo Elementary School 

2. Location 
street & number : 1152 East Central Avenue 

Survey No. AA-2207 

DOE _· _yes _no 

__ not for publication 

city, town __x_ vicinity of Mayo congressional district 

state Maryland county Anne Arundel 

3. Classification 
Category Ownership Status Present Use 

- district _x_public _x_occupied _agriculture - museum 
_K_building(s) _private _unoccupied - commercial _park 

- structure - both _work in progress _x_ educational _private residence 

- site Public Acquisition Accessible - entertainment _religious 
/'_object _in process _K_yes: restricted _government - scientific 

_being considered _yes: unrestricted - industrial _transportation 
_x_not applicable - no _military - other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses ofa11 owners> 

name Anne Arundel County Board of Education 

street & number 2644 Riva Road telephone no.: 

city,town Annapolis state and zip code MD 21401 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Anne Arundel County Land Records 

street & number Church Circle 

liber 

folio 

city.town Annapolis state MD 

6. Representation in Existing Historical Surveys 
title none 

~date _federal _state _county _local 

depository for survey records 

city.town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
__ excellent 
_X_good 
__ fair 

Resource Count: 1 

__ deteriorated 
__ ruins 
__ unexposed 

Check one 
__ unaltered 
_x_altered 

Survey No. AA-2207 

Check one 
_K_original site 
__ moved date of move ___ _ 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its various elements as it exists today. 

The Mayo School is on the northeast corner of East Central Avenue (MD 214) and Mayo Ridge Road in the Mayo 
community of Anne Arundel County. The property occupies 7.27 acres of flat, open land in a low-density residential area. 
The school complex consists of a 1936 school building with 1959 and 1963 additions. A parking lot and playgrounds are 
located to the north of the buildings, and athletic fields are located to the east. Three mobile classrooms are currently 
clustered at the south end of the site. An earlier school building, dating to 1907, is located across East Central Avenue to 
the west on a separate tax parcel. 

The 1936 school faces south toward Mayo Ridge Road. The 1959 addition extends north and east from the 1936 building. 
The 1963 addition extends east and south from the 1959 addition so that the entire complex forms a "U". The 1-story, 5-
bay 1936 section is constructed of brick and has a concrete foundation. A brick parapet wall with concrete coping 
surrounds the flat roof. The tall, narrow window openings have bridge jack arches and sills. The original windows have 
been replaced with modern, 1/1 double-hung windows. The new windows are shorter than the original openings, and the 
space above them has been filled. An entry portico projects from the south elevation. 

The main entry to the 1936 building is located in the center bay of the south elevation. The parapet wall is raised slightly 
over this bay, and the entry portico projects forward. The 1-bay portico has a flat roof and arched openings on the east, 
south, and west sides. Concrete steps lead through the east and west openings. Within the portico is a set of double, half­
glass doors beneath a 4-light transom. Two widely spaced windows are located on each side of the entry. 

The west elevation of the 1936 building has 10 windows symmetrically arranged into two groups of five. The north elevation 
of the building is now obscured by the 1959 addition. The east elevation is identical to the west. 

A narrow, central passage runs north to south through the 1936 building. Two classrooms and two smaller rooms are 
located on each side of the passage. The small room in the northeast corner of the building was originally a stage which 
connected to one of the classrooms. The small room in the southeast corner was originally the principal's office. The 
interior of the building has a terrazzo floor, plain plastered walls, and a modern tile ceiling. The original doors have been 
replaced, and the transoms above them have been filled. A simple baseboard runs the length of the passage, and several 
original radiators remain in place. The north end of the central passage connects to the 1959 addition. 

The 1959 addition consists of administrative offices, a gymasium/auditorium/cafeteria, and a group of classrooms. The 
administrative wing extends north from the 1936 building. The wing is constructed of brick and has a low, flat roof. A 
recessed band of 3-light awning windows stretches across the west elevation. An entry is located on the north elevation. 
The gymnasium/auditorium/cafeteria extends east from the administrative wing. Also constructed of brick, it is the tallest 
part of the school complex and has a low-pitched gable roof. A flat-roofed kitchen and service area extends south beneath 
the clerestory on the north wall of the gymnasium. A small classroom wing extends east and wraps the south wall of the 
gymnasium. The classroom wing is stylistically identical to the administrative wing and has bands of windows on the north 

r and south elevations. 

The 1963 addition extends east and south from the 1959 classroom wing. It has a central passage running north to south 
with classrooms on each side. Entries are located at each end of the passage. The east and west elevations of this 
addition have the same bands of awning windows that are found on the 1959 addition. 



8. Significance Survey No. AA-2207 

~Period 

_prehistoric 
1400-1499 
1500-1599 
1600-1699 
1700-1799 
1800-1899 

.JL1900-

Areas of Significance -- Check and justify below 
_archaeology-prehistoric _community planning 
_archeology-historic _conservation 
_agriculture _economics 
_architecture _Leducation 
_art _engineering 
_commerce _exploration/settlement 
_communications _industry 

invention 

Specific dates 1936, 1959, 1963 

check: Applicable Criteria: _A - B - c - D 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: _A - B - c - D 

_landscape architecture 
_law 
_literature 
_military 
_music 
_philosophy 
_politics/government 

Builder/Architect unknown 

E _F _G 

Level of Significance: - national - state _local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and support. 

_religion 
_science 
_sculpture 
_social/ 

humanitarian 
_theater 
_transportation 

other (specify) 

The Mayo School is a simple, utilitarian building typical of institutional buildings constructed during the 1930s. The design 
and expansion of the school reflects the transition of a historically rural agricultural community into a resort and bedroom 
community. Until the early-20th century, Mayo's economy was based in tobacco, grain crops, and the seafood industry. 
Resort communities and suburbanization changed the landscape and economy beginning in the 1920s. The Mayo School 
was constructed in 1936 to replace an earlier rural schoolhouse and expanded in 1959 and 1963 to accommodate 

.. ~population growth. 

The community of Mayo occupies the peninsula between the South River and the Rhode River on the Chesapeake Bay. 
Originally inhabited by the Susquehanna, the area was settled by English colonists beginning in 1652, when Lord Baltimore 
granted 490 acres to Edward Selby. By the time of his death in 1688, Selby owned 1400 acres which constituted most of 
the peninsula. From the late-17th through the early-19th centuries, much of the land was owned by the Linthicum family and 
the Cotter-Gassaway family. The land was rented to tenant farmers for the cultivation of tobacco, the mainstay of the 
Maryland economy. Tobacco culture peaked in the years immediately preceding the Revolutionary War, after which 
depleted soils led to decreased yields. Some farmers at this time began growing grain crops; others turned to the newly 
developing seafood industry (Mullins 1996, 26; Bradford 1977, xvi-xvii). 

In 1835, Commodore Isaac Mayo of the United States Navy acquired a large parcel of land known as "Cotter's Desire." The 
community was later named "Mayo" in his honor. The area experienced a brief period of agricultural prosperity during the 
1830s and 1840s following the development of lime fertilizer, and again during the Civil War when Union troops occupied 
Annapolis. Following the war, many large estates were subdivided into smaller farms or rented to multiple tenant farmers. 
Although cultivation of tobacco continued, grain and produce crops became increasingly important. Many local residents 
also worked as "watermen," harvesting oysters during the winter and crabs during the summer. Local produce and seafood 
were shipped to cities such as Baltimore and Annapolis on steamboats. The Tolchester Company, formed in 1877, 
operated steamboat routes that included Mayo until the 1920s (Taylor et al. 1953, 6; Bradford 1977, xvii; Mullins 1996, 28, 
54-55). 

The early 20th century saw the development of summer colonies and public beaches in the Mayo area. The first subdivision 
of the large farms into residential lots occurred in 1916 when Oscar Keys, who bought Cotter's Desire from the Mayo family 
in 1915, sold eight acres to Albert Bull, Leander Jackson, and John Evans. The Beverly Beach resort, which included a 
public beach as well as summer cottages, was developed beginning in 1924. Other beach resorts included Mayo Beach 
(1939), Triton Beach (1942), and Ponder's Cove (1950). Local residents found summer employment at the resorts, and the 
surge in population boosted the seafood industry. Two oyster shucking houses operated in Mayo during the early 20th 
century. As the century progressed, many houses that began as summer cottages were upgraded to become year-round 
homes. The new residents generally commuted to jobs in Annapolis, Washington D.C., or Baltimore. The population of 



CONTINUATION SHEET 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM 

~ RESOURCE NAME: Mayo School 

I~ 
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SURVEY NO.: AA-2207 
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8. Significance (Continued) 

Mayo increased further as suburbanization continued from the 1940s through the present. The population nearly doubled 
between 1960 and 1995, with most suburban development concentrated along the waterways (Taylor et al. 1953, 6, 16-19, 
22; Bradford 1977, xvii; Mullins 1996, 215). 

The first public school in Mayo opened following the passage of the Maryland Public School Law of 1865. The Law 
established a statewide system of primary and high schools and included provisions for the training of teachers to state 
standards. The one-room, wood-frame Mayo School, opened after the Civil War, was located along the "old county road" 
(MD 214) on the north end of the peninsula. An additional school opened on the south end of the peninsula in 1891. The 
first building was later moved and used as an addition to a general store. The second building was converted to a 
residence. The current condition of the buildings is unknown. In 1907, the two schools were consolidated and began 
meeting in a new, three-room wood-frame building located across the street from the present school site. That building is 
now the Mayo Post Office. In 1916, the Maryland School Law passed, providing funds for school construction and 
consolidation. A period of growth for Mayo School began in 1928 when the Woodland Beach School, located to the north, 
closed and the students began commuting to Mayo. In 1936, a new school building opened on the present site. The fifth 
grade class of 1952-1953 described the building as follows: 

The new school is modern, with three large classrooms that have adjoining cloakrooms, and a small 
auditorium with a stage. This auditorium was made so that it could be easily converted into a classroom if 
the need arose. There is an office for the principal, two large lavatories and a basement in which is a central 
heating plant. There are drinking fountains in the hall and an electric bell. In each classroom is a built-in 
bookcase, much blackboard space and a bulletin board. 

Despite the conversion of the auditorium into a classroom and the removal of the seventh grade to a junior high school in 
Annapolis during the 1940s, the Mayo School quickly became overcrowded. By the early 1950s, the school was using the 
three rooms of its former building across the street as well as an unused classroom at the neighboring Galesville School. A 
substantial addition to the Mayo school opened in 1959. The addition contains administrative offices, classrooms and a 
gymnasium/auditorium/cafeteria. An additional classroom wing was constructed in 1963. The school also currently uses 
three mobile classrooms (Warden, 4-5; Taylor et al. 1953, 30-33). 

The 1936 Mayo School is a common example of an institutional building of the 1930s. The design is simple and 
utilitarian with little ornamentation. The double-loaded central passage, tall windows and interior transoms promoted 
cross-ventilation while maximizing natural light. The stage and classroom/auditorium provided flexibility for the growing 
and changing school. The smaller rooms in the corners of the building have changed function many times over the 
years. Materials such as concrete, brick, terrazzo and plaster were simple and sturdy. The portico on the south 
elevation marks the main entry to the building and provides the sole exterior ornamentation. In general, the building, like 
others of its period, has a very practical design. 

Page 8.1 
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ADDRESS: 1152 East Central Ave., Mayo vicinity, Anne Arundel County 

8. Significance (Continued) 

National Register Evaluation: 

Constructed in 1936, 1959 and 1963, the Mayo School is not eligible for the National Register of Historic Places. The 
property is not eligible under Criterion A, as research conducted indicates no association with any historic events or trends 
significant in the development of national, state or local history. Construction and enlargement of the building did reflect the 
growing population of Mayo, however many resources are associated with that growth, and that association in itself does 
not constitute significance. The building is also not an immediate or direct result of any major changes in the education 
policies of Anne Arundel County or the state of Maryland. Historic research indicates that the property has no association 
with persons who have made specific contributions to history, and therefore, it does not meet Criterion B. The property is 
not eligible under Criterion C because it is not a distinctive work of architecture, nor is it an outstanding example of its type. 
The building has a very basic, common design with little ornamentation and no unusual features. Also, due to changes 
such as the replacement of original windows and doors, the building does not retain a high enough level of integrity to be an 
outstanding example of a typical school building of its time period. 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
Eligibility recommended _________ _ 
Comments: 

Page 8.2 
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Eligibility Not Recommended __________ _ 



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. AA-2207 

~See Continuation Sheet 

~ 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of nominated property ----------­
Quadrangle name _S~ou~t~h~R~i~ve~r~M~D~---------

Verbal boundary description and justification 
N/A 

Quadrangle scale __ 1~:=24~0~0~0 ____ _ 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state 

11. Form Prepared By 
name/title Julie Darsie 

arganjzatjan KC! Technalagjes Inc rj3te October 1999 

street & number 10 North Park Drjye telephone (410) 316-7800 

city or town Hunt Valley state Maryland 21030 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be 
found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 197 4 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposed only and do not 
constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCP/DHCD 
100 Community Place 
Crownsvil!e, MD 21032-2023 
(410) 514-7600 
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Resource Sketch Map: Site Plan 
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10. Geographical Data (Continued) 

Resource Sketch Map: Floor Plan 
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